
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87876063965






http://colfax-ca.gov/










he pro ect would start in phases as money is raised, starting with simpler 

trails at the bottom then working upwards. 























3 AGENCY REPORTS 
 

3A.  California Highway Patrol Chris Naves provided a report. 

CAL FIRE Chief Eagan provided a report.  

Colfax Station Commander Sgt. Ty Conners provided a report.  

Colfax Chamber of Commerce Tim Ryan provided a report. 

 

4 PRESENTATION  

 

4A.  Retail Strategies - Presenters Matt Tate and Elliot Cook, provided an overview of their retail 

recruitment process (presentation available in record). 

 

 Public comment: Tim Ryan and Lauri Lish. 

 

5 PUBLIC HEARING  

 

5A.  This item was delayed until after the consent calendar. Please see item 5A below. 

 

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Councilmember Fatula pulled item 6G from the consent calendar for further discussion and separate vote. 

 

6A.  Minutes ï Regular Meeting of October 28, 2020  

Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 28, 2020. 
 

6B.  Minutes ï Special Meeting and Workshop of November 4, 2020  

Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting and Workshop of November 4, 2020. 
 

6C.  Cash Summary ï October 2020  

Accept and File. 
 

6D.  Quarterly Investment Report ï Quarter ended 09/30/2020  

Accept and File. 
 

6E.  Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds Claim 

Documentation  

Adopt Resolution 66-2020 authorizing the City Manager to file claims or execute 

agreements for: Local Transportation Funds in the amount of $93,867 for streets and roads purposes 

(Article 8 ï Section 99400 of the California Public Utilities Code), and State Transit Assistance Funds 

of $8,317 for transit services (Article 6.5, Chapter 4, Section 99313 of the California Public Utilities 

Code). 
 

6F.  Batchelder Union Negotiation Contract Amendment  

Adopt Resolution 67-2020 approving the budgetary amendment to the Batchelder 

Group Labor Negotiations agreement in the amount of $10,000 for a total contract cost of $22,000. 
 

6G.  PG&E Microgrid Station Utility Easement APN 006-071-010  

Removed from the consent calendar. See action taken after consent calendar approval. 

 

6H.  WWTP Construction Grant ï Design/Build Contract with Holt Renewables  

Adopt Resolution 68-2020 adopting a Design/Build contract with Holt Renewables to design and 

construct a 481-kilowatt direct current ground mount solar power collection system at the Cityôs 

wastewater treatment plant with a 20% contingency in an amount not to exceed $1,944,870. 



 

6I.  Green Means Go  

Adopt Resolution 69-2020 Establishing Green Zones for the Green Means Go Pilot 

Project. 

 

6J.  Cintas Uniform Agreement  

Adopt Resolution 70-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 5-year 

agreement with Cintas for uniform services in an amount not to exceed $32,461. 

 

 By MOTION, approve the consent calendar excluding item 6G. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Fatula and approved by 

the following roll call vote: 

 AYES:  Fatula, Douglass, Burruss, Lomen, Mendoza 

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

  

6G.  PG&E Microgrid Station Utility Easement APN 006-071-010  

 

City Manager Heathcock provided background and further information on this item.  

 

Adopt Resolution 71-2020 authorizing the City Manager to execute a PG&E Utility 

Easement on APN# 006-071-010 that will allow PG&E to supply power to most of the City during 

public safety power shutoffs. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded Councilmember Lomen and approved by the 

following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  Fatula, Douglass, Burruss, Lomen, Mendoza 

NOES:   

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

 

5 PUBLIC HEARING  

 

5A.  Public Hearing, Osborn Development Project, Site Plan / Design Review  

Staff presentation by Planning Director Amy Feagans (presentation available in record).  

 

No public comment received. 

 

Council Member Fatula had questions and requested amendments to the Plan. 

 

Council conducted a public hearing and adopted Resolution 72-2020 adopting the Mitigated Negative 

Declaration and approving the Design Review and Site Plan for the Osborn Development Project located 

at 1836 Canyon Way as amended. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded Councilmember Douglass and approved by the 

following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  Fatula, Douglass, Burruss, Lomen, Mendoza 

NOES:   

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  









   Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report January 13, 2021 City Planner Contract – Emmanuel Ursu 

FOR THE JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Amy Feagans, City Planner 

Subject: City Planner Contract ï Emmanuel Ursu 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: Õ Un-funded: Amount:$270,021 Fund(s):100-450, 120 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a Contract Agreement with 

URSU Consulting for City Planning Services for a term of three years in an amount not to exceed 

$270,021. 

Summary/Background 

The current contract City Planner, Amy Feagans, is retiring after five years of service with the City. 

After soliciting and interviewing a few candidates, it was determined that Emmanuel Ursu (URSU 

Consulting) would be the best fit for the Cityôs upcoming future and current planning needs. 

Mr. Ursu is a professional planner with over 27 years, working on both the public side most recently as 

Planning Director for the City of Orinda in the East Bay, and also has experience working for private 

consulting firms. 

The contract as proposed would provide up to 12 hours per week of planning services for three years 

(through 2024). The expectation is that the Planner would be in the office approximately one day per 

week depending on need. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Funding for these services will come primarily from the General Fund ï Planning services (Fund 100-

450), but may also be funded by development planning (Fund 120) application fees for specific 

projects such as Design Review permits, Use permits, Tentative Subdivision Maps. Grant application 

fees such as the recently awarded LEAP and REAP grant funds can also pay a portion of expenses for 

the consultant Planner. 

The proposed contract amount of $270,021 is for three years of services and included a 3 percent 

escalator after year 1 and year 2. 

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2021

2. URSU Consultant Contract

3. Resume ï Emmanuel Ursu















Consultant Agreement Page 6 

 

Section 12. Termination of Services. 
 
City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services 
and this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of 
notice of termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage 
directed by City.  Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for 
Services performed up to the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  
Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for any Services performed after the receipt 
of the notice of termination unless such payment is authorized in advance in writing by 
the City. 
 
Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within 
the time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should 
Consultant violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such 
termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to 
the date of receipt of the notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the 
compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or 
employee of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and 
supervision of the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall 
receive no premium or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor 
shall Consultant receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other 
time not actually expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the 
parties that Consultant shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no 
compensation from the City, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall submit completed W -9 and Report of Independent Contractor forms upon 
execution of this Agreement and prior to the payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 
Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 
Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or 
prepared by Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood 
and agreed that all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the 
City and not the property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, 
studies, documents and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, 
employees and agents in the course of performing the Services shall become the sole 
property of the City upon payment to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have 









Consultant Agreement Page 10 

 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties 
hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms 
or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
ÒÅÁÓÏÎÁÂÌÅ ÁÔÔÏÒÎÅÙȭÓ ÆÅÅÓȟ ÃÏÓÔÓ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅ ÅØÐÅÎÓÅÓ ÏÆ ÅØÐÅÒÔ ×ÉÔÎÅÓÓÅÓȟ ÉÎÃÌÕÄÉÎÇ ÁÎÙ 
such fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day 
first above written:  
 
CITY  CONSULTANT  

 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: 

 
Printed Name: 

 

 
Title: 

 
Title: 

 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 City Attorney 

 
 



mailto:Wes.Heathcock@colfax-ca.gov


mailto:emmanuelursu@gmail.com


 

 

 

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

League of California Cities 

Planning Commissioners 

Academy.  

 

òNew Commissioner  

Orientation,ó March 2010 

 

òTop Ten Questions,ó March  

2009 

 

òRoles and Responsibilities of 

the Planning Commission,ó             

March 2008 

 

 

BRODY RANCH MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT | CITY OF PETALUMA, CA 

Processing zoning map amendment, planned unit development, subdivision and design review 

applications for the development of a 138 condominium and 61 single-family home 

development adjacent to the future North Petaluma SMART rail station.  

 

RIVERFRONT MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT | CITY OF PETALUMA, CA 

Processed design review applications, final subdivision maps, and infrastructure improvement 

plans for the development of 134 single-family homes and 122-room hotel in the Riverfront 

mixed-use development.   

 

URBAN GROWN BOUNDARY RENEWAL BALLOT MEASURE | CITY OF 

ROHNERT PARK, CA 

Assisted the City with the process of preparing and successfully presenting to the voters 

renewal and modification of the UGB ballot measure. 

 

URBAN GROWN BOUNDARY EXTENSION AND  

RENEWAL BALLOT MEASURE |  TOWN OF WINDSOR, CA 

Assisted the Town with the process of preparing and successfully presenting to the voters 

renewal and extension of the UGB ballot measure. Coordinated with the Sonoma Local Agency 

Formation Commission, Sonoma County, property owners and with the environmental review 

consultants. 

 

RANCHO MALIBU HOTEL, WILDLAND FIRE RECOVERY ASSISTANCE  |  CITY 

OF MALIBU, CA  

Processed controversial development proposal and managed EIR for 144-unit hotel on a 26-

acre site in the center of Malibu. Also processed development applications for reconstruction 

of homes destroyed by the 1993 and 1996 wildland fires, and assisted with day-to-day 

operations of the Planning Department. 

 

VIEW PRESERVATION AND RESTORATION  

BALLOT MEASURE IMPLEMENTATION |  CITY OF RANCHO PALOS VERDES, CA 

Implemented the voter approved view preservation and restoration ballot measure requiring 

restoration of views impaired by vegetation on neighboring properties. Also mediated disputes 

between property owners. 

 

SPORTS TRAINING, AIR FORCE BASE, DEFENSE CONTRACTOR FACILITY 

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS |  CITY OF EL SEGUNDO, CA  

Processed land use applications for the development of the Los Angeles Lakers and Kings 

training facility and for improvements at the Los Angeles Air Force Base and Lockheed-Martin 

facilities. Also provided staffing assistance with day-to-day operations of the Planning 

Department. 

 

REDEVELOPMENT AREA PROJECT PROCESSING |  CITY OF CULVER CITY, CA  

Processed development proposals for large-scale infill projects in a redevelopment area that 

incorporated a mix of retail, service and parking structures. 

 

 

 

mailto:emmanuelursu@gmail.com


 EARTHQUAKE RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW |  CITY OF 

SANTA MONICA, CA  

Lead planner for the Cityõs earthquake recovery efforts after the January 1994 Northridge 

earthquake. Also processed applications for a wide variety of retail, service, institutional, and 

residential development proposals. 

 

NEWLY INCORPORATED CITY STAFFING | CITY OF CALABASAS, CA  

Staffed the Planning Department for the then newly incorporated city. Established department 

operating procedures, prepared code updates and fee schedules, and lead processing of most 

development applications. 

 

CONTRACT STAFFING SERVICES | VARIETY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES   

Also provided contract planning services to the cities of La Habra Heights, Carson, Rosemead, 

Azusa, Huntington Beach, and Long Beach processing a variety of development proposals and 

administering housing rehabilitation programs. 

 

-- 

40

mailto:emmanuelursu@gmail.com


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/index.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/finalpolicy0513.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/srf_forms.html








 

City of Colfax WWTP Planning Grant ï Graham Environmental Budget 

Amendment Staff Report January 13, 2021 

  

The biological resource and cultural resource studies and the air quality analysis will be attached to the form.  

No other technical studies will be prepared. 
 

A draft package(s) will be provided to the City and Water Board for review.   After receipt of comments, the 

form(s) will be revised and finalized. 
 

Task 5: Project Management, Meetings and Hearings 
 

The Consultant will communicate with City staff throughout the environmental process.  They will also oversee 

the sub-consultants and review the biological resources, cultural resources and air quality studies. The 

Consultant will attend up to three meetings or hearings with City and/or Water Board staff, and/or others (as 

directed by staff). Additional meetings, if necessary, will be reimbursed on a time-and-materials basis.    
 

Products 

¶ Electronic copy (word text files and pdf) and 3 hard copies of the Administrative Draft Initial 

Study provided to the City. 

¶ Electronic copy (word text files in track changes) and 1 hard copy of the Screencheck Initial 

Study in track changes provided to the City for final review. 

¶ 15 pdfs on disk with 15 hard copy summaries of the public review Draft Initial Study and Notice 

of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration submitted the State Clearinghouse 

(accompanied by a NOC) by the consultant.  

¶ 1 unbound hard copy, and 1 electronic copy (pdf) of the Draft IS/MND provided to the City. 

¶ Electronic copy (word text files) of draft responses to comments provided to the City. 

¶ Electronic copy (word text files) and 1 hard copy of the Administrative Draft MMRP provided to 

the City. 

¶ Electronic copy (word text files and pdf files) and 1 hard copy of the revised MMRP provided to 

the City. 

¶ Electronic copy of the draft Environmental Package(s) provided to the City and Water Board. 

¶ Electronic copy of the final Environmental Package(s) provided to the City and Water Board. 
 

The environmental review is anticipated to be two-months after the City receives the planning grant award from 

the RWQCB. Staff is optimistic the RWQCB will approve the planning grant in February 2019. The goal of 

executing an agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP contingent on RWQCB approval allows the City to 

move forward quickly. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Jim Fletter with Wood Rodgers provided the recommendation to procure Adrienne L. Graham, AICP 

environmental services based on past working experience with the consultant. Staff is recommending approval 

of an agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP to perform tasks outlined in an amount not to exceed $63,822, 

which includes a 10% contingency conditional on Regional Water Quality Control Board grant application 

approval. 
 

Fiscal Impacts 
 

The Graham Environmental contract change is charged to Fund 561 (WWTP) and reimbursed by the Regional 

Board Planning Grant. The increase is $26,125 for a new not to exceed amount of $89,947. The additional costs 

are necessary and fit within the Regional Board Planning Grant budget.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution __ - 2021 

2. Graham Environmental Agreement  











Page 4 

 

requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 

and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 
D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
 
 
 
 

50







Page 7 

 

compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 
Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 
Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 

 

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
 
Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 
extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed 
Services are provided. 
 
Section 16. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
 
Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations.  
 
Section 17. Retention of Records. 
 
Consultant and any subconsultants authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep 
and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time 
sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such 
documents available for review and/or audit by City and City's representatives at all 
reasonable times during performance of the Services and for at least four (4) years after 
completion of the Services and/or termination of this Agreement.  
 
Section 18. Alternative Dispute Resolution 
 
A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary 

contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following 
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party 
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice 
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall 



Page 9 

 

meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, 
or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall 
attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any 
dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement 
shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the 
subparagraph B below.  

 
B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 

after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite 
the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to 
each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, 
including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days 
after the mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall 

mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to 
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on 
the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then 
active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The 
arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In 
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If 

there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall 
be used instead of a Sacramento office. 
 

Section 19. Severability. 
 
The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 
 















 $‐

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

City of Colfax π November 2020
General Fund Reserved Cash π Revenues by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

Franchises (WAVE, Recology, PGE) Motor Vehicle In Lieu Other Property Tax

Sales Tax Business Licenses/Taxes Planning Fees Interest Income









CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

Checks Processed November 2020

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 1Page:
10:46 amTime:

12/10/2020Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

4,005.73HEALTH PREMIUMS NOV 2020CALPERS03141Reconciled11/06/202056336 11/30/2020

3,700.00BIOASSAY OCT 202049ER WATER SERVICES1161Reconciled11/05/202056337 11/30/2020

105.57DEPOT PROPANEAMERIGAS - COLFAX01448Reconciled11/05/202056338 11/30/2020

136.92IRRIGATION SUPPLIESANDERSON'S SIERRA01500Reconciled11/05/202056339 11/30/2020
17.62ART PARK IRRIGATIONANDERSON'S SIERRA01500Reconciled11/05/202056340 11/30/2020

713.23UNIFORM SVCS OCT 2020ARAMARK01460Reconciled11/05/202056341 11/30/2020

525.60PREMIUMS DEC 2020CHOICE BUILDER03401Reconciled11/05/202056342 11/30/2020

154.47DOG WASTE BAGSDOG WASTE DEPOT04541Reconciled11/05/202056343 11/30/2020
143,135.00WWTP POND 3 LINER RPRENGINEERED SOIL REPAIRS, 

INC
5215Reconciled11/05/202056344 11/30/2020

5,376.47WWTP CHEMICALSEOSI - ENVIRONMENT 
OPERATING

05221Printed11/05/202056345

196.48WWTP PHONEFRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS06278Reconciled11/05/202056346 11/30/2020

30,092.00ENG SVCS SEPT 2020GHD INC.14859Reconciled11/05/202056347 11/30/2020
211.34NO SMOKING ORDINANCE 

NOTICE
GOLD COUNTRY MEDIA07460Reconciled11/05/202056348 11/30/2020

100.92REIMBURSEMENT AGRMT 
NOTICE

GOLD COUNTRY MEDIA07460Reconciled11/05/202056349 11/30/2020

262.55LYONS PARK BARKHANSEN BROS. ENTERPRISES08070Reconciled11/05/202056350 11/30/2020
438.48STMT 10/25/20HILLS FLAT LUMBER CO08170Reconciled11/05/202056351 11/30/2020

244.72FIRE DEPT FUELHUNT AND SONS, INC.08660Reconciled11/05/202056352 11/30/2020

578.60PW/WWTP FUELHUNT AND SONS, INC.08660Reconciled11/05/202056353 11/30/2020

109.23RED PAINTINTERSTATE SALES09540Reconciled11/05/202056354 11/30/2020
166.24TRAFFIC CONESINTERSTATE SALES09540Reconciled11/05/202056355 11/30/2020

1,320.25NPDES PERMIT ASSISTANCELARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES23101Reconciled11/05/202056356 11/30/2020

1,778.45LANDFILL MONITORING SEPT 
2020

LAWRENCE & ASSOCIATES INC12180Reconciled11/05/202056357 11/30/2020

10,910.53LEGAL SVCS OCT 2020PELLETREAU, ALDERSON & 
CABRAL

16011(2)Reconciled11/05/202056358 11/30/2020

18,877.49ELECTRICITYPG&E16035Reconciled11/05/202056359 11/30/2020

182.30POSTAGE MACH SUPPLIESPITNEY BOWES16040AReconciled11/05/202056360 11/30/2020

796.00LANDFILL Q1 20/21 TESTINGPLACER COUNTY 
ENVIRONMENTAL

16165Reconciled11/05/202056361 11/30/2020

1,907.31GENERATOR FUEL/WWTP & LSRAMOS OIL INC.18089Reconciled11/05/202056362 11/30/2020

627.26CURB TAPESIERRA SAFETY COMPANY19396Reconciled11/05/202056363 11/30/2020
300.00COLFAX CONN NOV 2020 EDITINGWILL STOCKWIN 19743Reconciled11/05/202056364 11/30/2020

1,698.02STMT 10/22/20US BANK CORPORATE PMT 
SYSTEM

21560Reconciled11/05/202056365 11/30/2020

6,656.25FINANCIAL SVCS OCT 2020VAN GRONINGEN & 
ASSOCIATES

22106Reconciled11/05/202056366 11/30/2020

159.90CITY HALL INTERNETWAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled11/05/202056367 11/30/2020

18.39DEPOT PHONEWAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled11/05/202056368 11/30/2020

798.35PW TRASH BAGSWAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled11/05/202056369 11/30/2020

18,920.01LEGAL SVCS SEPT 2020WENDEL ROSEN23218Reconciled11/05/202056370 11/30/2020
122.68CITY HALL/WWTP WATERALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS01414Reconciled11/13/202056371 11/30/2020

76.62BALLPARK IRRIGATIONANDERSON'S SIERRA01500Reconciled11/13/202056372 11/30/2020

5,610.00BLDG OFFICIAL SVCS OCT 2020BUREAU VERITAS NORTH 
AMERICA

02901Reconciled11/13/202056373 11/30/2020

23,390.00WWTP OPERATOR 
CONSULTANTS

COLEMAN ENGINEERING3496Reconciled11/13/202056374 11/30/2020

100.00TRUNK OR TREAT EVENT 
REFUND

COLFAX GREEN MACHINE07591Printed11/13/202056375

4,585.00CDBG ROAD REHAB GEOTECHCRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES 
INC.

3652Reconciled11/13/202056376 11/30/2020

27.00VACTRON REGISTRATIONDEPARTMENT OF MOTOR 
VEHICLES

04258Printed11/13/202056377

29,216.75ENG SVCS OCT 2020GHD INC.14859Reconciled11/13/202056378 11/30/2020

67.20JOB POSTING CPOGOLD COUNTRY MEDIA07460Reconciled11/13/202056379 11/30/2020
75.00DEPOT PEST CONTROLGOLD MINER PEST CONTROL07465Reconciled11/13/202056380 11/30/2020

250.00CORP YARD PEST CONTROLGOLD MINER PEST CONTROL07465Reconciled11/13/202056381 11/30/2020

401.54BARKHANSEN BROS. ENTERPRISES08070Reconciled11/13/202056382 11/30/2020







Debit Credit Net Chng

City of Colfax

Page:  1
12/10/2020

10:29 am

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

11/01/2020 - 11/30/2020

Fund:  100 - General Fund

14,263.25 0.00 14,263.2511/02/2020 Daily Totals

1,624.61 0.00 1,624.6111/03/2020 Daily Totals

4,479.68 0.00 4,479.6811/05/2020 Daily Totals

2,055.86 0.00 2,055.8611/09/2020 Daily Totals

41.50 0.00 41.5011/10/2020 Daily Totals

1,864.61 0.00 1,864.6111/13/2020 Daily Totals

734.75 206.79 527.9611/16/2020 Daily Totals

940.82 0.00 940.8211/17/2020 Daily Totals

2,228.62 0.00 2,228.6211/18/2020 Daily Totals

1,286.93 0.00 1,286.9311/23/2020 Daily Totals

86.90 0.00 86.9011/24/2020 Daily Totals

127,180.00 0.00 127,180.0011/25/2020 Daily Totals

156,580.74206.79156,787.53TOTALS:Fund:  100 - General Fund

Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees

156.04 0.00 156.0411/03/2020 Daily Totals

6,603.78 0.00 6,603.7811/19/2020 Daily Totals

6,759.820.006,759.82TOTALS:Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees

Fund:  200 - Cannabis Application

406.00 0.00 406.0011/23/2020 Daily Totals

8,042.00 0.00 8,042.0011/25/2020 Daily Totals

8,448.000.008,448.00TOTALS:Fund:  200 - Cannabis Application

Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement

17,958.72 0.00 17,958.7211/18/2020 Daily Totals

17,958.720.0017,958.72TOTALS:Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement

Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG

3,444.15 0.00 3,444.1511/20/2020 Daily Totals

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

Item 6D.













Item 6E.



Item 6E.





Item 6E.

























  

City of Colfax Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 

Staff Report January 13, 2021 

  

Fiscal and Budget Impacts 

 

Our businesses continue to face challenging times and we likely have not seen all of the true impact of the 

Covid-19 Pandemic.  Staff will continue to monitor and provide updates as additional information is available. 
 

Attachments: 

1. Graph – City of Colfax – Sales and Use Tax Revenues 

2. Chart – City of Colfax – Sales and Use Tax Revenues History 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6F.





City of Colfax
Sales and Use Tax Revenues

Actuals Change % Change
1999π2000 478,169$               

2000π2001 484,801$               6,632$                   1%

2001π2002 592,392$               107,591$               22%

2002π2003 581,749$               (10,643)$                π2%

2003π2004 601,276$               19,527$                 3%

2004π2005 707,515$               106,239$               18%

2005π2006 749,583$               42,068$                 6%

2006π2007 752,431$               2,848$                   0%

2007π2008 648,989$               (103,442)$             π14%

2008π2009 540,051$               (108,938)$             π17%

2009π2010 538,549$               (1,502)$                  0%

2010π2011 551,953$               13,404$                 2%

2011π2012 571,943$               19,990$                 4%

2012π2013 706,828$               134,885$               24%

2013π2014 928,729$               221,901$               31%

2014π2015 956,342$               27,613$                 3%

2015π2016 * 1,104,357$           148,015$               15%

2016π2017  1,103,560$           (797)$                     0%

2017π2018 1,370,741$           267,181$               24%

2018π2019 1,401,608$           30,867$                 2%

2019π2020 1,524,302$           122,694$               9%

*Included  true up and final adjustments related to the end of the decade old 
  triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015

City of Colfax
Sales and Use Tax Revenue History

Item 6F.















City of Colfax WWTP Pond III Fissure Repair (Phase II) – GHD Budget 

Amendment Staff Report January 13, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Larry Wing, City Engineer 

Subject: WWTP Pond III Fissure Repair (Phase II) – GHD Budget Amendment 

  Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded:  Õ Un-funded: Amount:  $41,000 Fund(s):  560-695 

Summary/Background 

On August 12, 2020, City Council approved Resolution 46- 2020 which authorized the City Manager to execute 

a Consultant Services Agreement with GHD Inc. for Geotechnical Engineering Observation and Construction 

Testing Services for the Pond 3 Fissure Repair project at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

The work began in September 2020 and proceeded to completion in November 2020.  During the construction 

the Pond Liner was removed within the improvement area to expose the side slope ground surface.  At this time, 

it was discovered that lateral tension cracking existed on the slope surface and extended beyond the footprint of 

the installed plate pile system.  The tension cracks exist predominantly on the upper portion of the slope and 

traverse in a lateral and diagonal direction.  The cracks continue to extend under the in-place liner on the north 

and south ends of the designated work area. 

Under their existing contract authority, the contractor for the project Engineered Soils Repairs, Inc. (ESR) will 

be using ground penetrating radar (GPR) above the in-place liner to locate and map the distressed cracking on 

the embankment side slope.  This effort will produce a map showing the limits of the existing cracking. 

Following the completed GPR analysis, GHD Inc. proposes to complete a geophysical survey over the extent of 

the presumed cracking to identify the subsurface characteristics for the design of the continued slope repair 

improvements.  The objective of the geophysical survey is to determine whether or not the soils characteristics 

of the new area are similar in nature to the soils characteristics of the first phase project.  If they are, then a 

similar design and construction approach using plate piles can be accomplished for the second phase (Phase II) 

of work. 

Staff has reviewed the scope and cost of the geophysical survey proposal from GHD Inc. and finds them 

reasonable, and recommends approval of the budget amendment. 

Fiscal Impacts 

The work associated with the investigation and repair of the newly discovered lateral cracks is reimbursable 

through the City’s insurance carrier. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution __ - 2021

2. GHD Agreement

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to increase the GHD contract in the amount of 

$12,500 for a total amount not to exceed $41,000 for Pond III Fissure Repair Phase II. 

Item 6I.















Item 6I.

106









Item 6I.



Item 6I.













Page 3 of 7 
212855.1 

claim or right to employment, civil service protection, salary, 

benefits, compensation, or claims of any kind or nature from 

Auburn as a result of this Agreement. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1. Colfax shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Auburn, and its 

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, from and against any 

and all liabilities, losses, claims, damages, expenses, demands, and 

costs (including without limitation litigations costs and attorney, 

expert witness, and consultant fees) of every kind and nature 

arising out of a breach of "ÖÓÍÈßɀÚ obligations under this 

Agreement, except where caused by the sole negligence or willful 

misconduct of Auburn, or its officers, employees, agents, or 

volunteers, or as otherwise required by law. 

5.2. Colfax shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Auburn, and its 

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, from and against any 

and all liabilities, losses, claims, damages, expenses, demands, and 

costs (including without limitation litigation costs and attorney, 

expert witness, and consultant fees) of every kind and nature 

arising out of the performance of General Clerk Services for Colfax 

under this Agreement.  

5.3. The Parties agree that the covenants contained in this Section 5 of 

this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this 

Agreement. 

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

6.1. The term of this agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, 

and may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by 

either of the Parties upon ten (10) days written notice to the other 

party as provided in this Agreement. 

6.2. In the event of termination of this Agreement by either of the 

Parties: (1) the Parties shall fully discharge all obligations owed to 

each other accruing prior to the effective date of such termination, 

and (2) Colfax shall pay Auburn for all General Clerk Services 

rendered prior to the effective date of such termination and 

properly billed as provided in this Agreement. 

Item 6J.

117



Page 4 of 7 
212855.1 

7. BILLING AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

7.1. Colfax shall pay Auburn for the General Clerk Services rendered 

under this Agreement at a rate of $61.52 per hour for applicable 

regular time worked and $85.49 per hour for applicable overtime  

worked. 

7.2. Auburn shall bill Colfax within ten (10) calendar days after the end 

of each calendar month by summarized invoice for the General 

Clerk Services provided in that month under this Agreement. The 

summarized invoice shall contain a statement of the number of 

hours worked. Colfax shall pay Auburn all amounts contained in 

such summarized invoice no later than thirty (30) days after receipt.  

8. NOTICES 

8.1. All notices and demands required or permitted to be given or made 

under this Agreement shall be in writing and either (1) hand 

delivered with signed receipt, or (2) mailed by first class registered 

or certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, 

addressed to the parties at the following addresses and to the 

attention of the person named. Addresses and persons named may 

be changed by either of the Parties by giving ten (10) days written 

notice to the other party. 

If to City of Auburn: 

 

City of Auburn 

Attn: John Donlevy, City Manager 

1225 Lincoln Way 

Auburn, CA 95603 

If to City of Colfax: 

 

City of Colfax 

Attn: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

33 South Main Street 

Colfax, CA 95713 

 

8.2. All other communications required under this Agreement may be 

either (1) hand delivered with signed receipt or (2) mailed by first 

class mail, including the summarized invoices pursuant to Section 

7.2 of this Agreement. 

9. WARRANTY OF AUTHORIZATION 

9.1. Auburn represents and warrants that the person executing this 

Agreement is a duly authorized representative of the City of 

Item 6J.



























City of Colfax 2020 ISO Rating 

Staff Report January 13, 2021 

     Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: 2020 ISO Rating 
  Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

Mayor Sean Lomen requested staff add the 2020 Insurance Services Office (ISO) Rating document to the 

January 13, 2021 agenda as an informational item. Staff is requesting that council discuss the document, and 

then provide staff with direction, if any. 

Fiscal Impacts 

N/A 

Attachments: 

1. 2020 ISO Rating Document

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide staff direction. 















138












































